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On Assignment Account Managers are professionals drawn from the occupations and industries they serve and they
remain the foundation of our success. Because of their industry background and expertise, they can better serve the
unique needs of our clients, and best recruit quality science and healthcare professionals. Our flagship division,
Lab Support, operates in the United States, Canada, and Europe, and serves many industries from food and
agribusiness to manufacturing and personal care products, with a special focus on our two largest segments: the
pharmaceutical and biotech industries, which continue to expand their demand for scientific laboratory specialists.
Replicating Lab Support’s success are our nationwide healthcare divisions: Healthcare Financial Staff, Clinical Lab Staff,
and Diagnostic Imaging Staff. These growing divisions focus on high-value occupations in specific segments of the

large and expanding healthcare staffing industry.

SUCCESS

replicating success Wwith i & SR
Dr. Joe Peterson was appointed President and CEO on September 1, 2001, afterthe
retirement of Tom Buelter, Chairman and CEO, and Kathy West, President and COO. i
After 12 years of leadership, dedication, and success, Tom and Kathy replicated ‘
their success one last time in collaborating with Joe for a smooth and successful ..
transition. Our new executive team is complete, competitive, and intensely

passionate about our future, and carefully composed of executives who bring

a new level of experience with leadership, growth, and scale to this next chapter

of On Assignment.
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On Assignment, Inc. has built a singular record of success by focusing on high-value occupations that

-/

offer strong gross margins and by delivering high-quality assignments of temporary employees

through our Account Manager model. Pioneered by On Assignment, this model

;. Uses experienced industry professionals - like laboratory chemists or radiologic

g

s,

technicians - to precisely match our employees’ skills to our clients’ needs.

foundation of our client and employee loyalty. And because our Account

Managers personally develop their local markets with administrative support from

replicating success 1 our e @haiey

On Assignment, Inc. serves over 2,000 clients from more than 100 office locations in the United States, Canada, anc
Europe, with each office receiving administrative support, training, and leadership from our headquarters operations
in Southern California. Going forward, we are focused upon Lab Support’s penetration of the growing biotechnology
and pharmaceutical sectors, and increasing the number of high-value occupations we address with our healthcare
clients. We are investing in leadership and infrastructure to support our growth, and to support the potential use o
our very strong balance sheet to complement organic growth with acquisitions. In parallel, we are investing in the
strength of our relationships with our temporary employees, a critical element in the next decade as the demand fo

qualified science and healthcare professionals continues to outpace supply.
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clients -

Advanced Footcare Specialists
Advanced Receivable Strategies
American Medical Laboratories, Inc.
American Red Cross
Apria Healthcare
Center for Orthopedics
Covance, Inc.
Dimensions Healthcare System
Doctors Community Hospital
Fresenius Medical Care - North America
Gentiva Health Services
Greater Southeast Community Hospital
Healthsouth Corporation
Kaiser Permanente
Laboratory Corporation of America
Mercy Healthcare
National Rehabilitation Hospital
New England Medical Center
Pracon
Qualink
Three Rivers Health Plans
Washington Adventist Hospital
Waterbury Hospital

Cliniezl L2 §&l

Alverno Clinical Laboratories, Inc.
Consolidated Laboratory Services
Duke University Health System
Parkland Memorial Hospital
Quest Diagnostics
Specialty Laboratories
Tularik, Inc.
Unilab Corp.

University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center

Baylor Health Care System
Tenet Health System
Harbor - UCLA Radiclogy

more

5 client fist of

Crosonivs Medieg] Cere knew

staff recruitment was not their core skil, ¢

they asked HFS to find and place qualifiec

employees in their biling department. We filled

all 11 posttions, and nine of the temporary

employees we placed were offered permanent

positions. Fresenius now offloads the time and

money they used to spend on recruiting by caling
HFS for their staffing needs.

Quest Riagnesiies landed new business
needed hard-to-find medical technologists. They ce
Clinical Lab Staff because their previous succ
with our Account Manager set us apart from tl
competition. Her advantage: the ability to fin
well qualified employees by tapping into her

network of former peers and their trust
in her to find the best possible
assignments.
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3M Pharmaceuticals
Abbott Laboratories
Akzo Nobel
Alcoa
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals
Aviron
Avon Products
BASF Corp.
-z Bayer
&g " gé;@m Beckman Coulter, Inc.
~ Rom A Calypte Bi dical C
%\JWQM\ " alypte Biomedical Corp.
= IO Cargill Inc.
@ SRy Celera Genomics
U @/;__)

Chesapeake Biological Laboratory
Chevron

Neese Technologlies is a biotech company

xperiencing rapid growth, and they turned to Lab Coca-Cola ‘
upport to find skilled technicians for an expanding %OO"SBBFGYC\QINQ Company
A/QC department. Our Account Manager so clearly E(():\cl)vlab'OCI es

nderstood their specific needs and matched them
~ith the right employees that she now functions as
part of their team.

Elan Pharmaceuticals
EntreMed, Inc.
Exelixis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Frito Lay
Genentech
Gilead Sciences
Grace Davidson
Invitrogen, Inc.
Kraft Foods
Medtronic
Midwest Research Institute
Miller Brewing Company
Monsanto Corp.

1gial

RV Techaolegy, a food science company

in the United Kingdom, needed to work
round the clock and through weekends to
complete a special project. RHM turned to

Neose Technologies, Inc.
NeuralStem
Neuronyx

Lab Support UK 10 solve this problem, and we
employed a bit of scheduling and compen-
sation creativity to place skilled scientists
ill these urgent, but off-hours needs.

Omnicare Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Ondeo Nalco
Pace Analytical
Pfizer
Pharmacia
PPG Industries
Procter & Gamble
Regeneron Pharmaceuticals
RHM Technology
Rhodia
Severn Trent Laboratories
Sifliker Laboratory Group
SRI International
Tropicana North America
Unilever Research
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The tumultuous year of 2001 demonstrated the strengths of On Assignment. our business model,
Account Manager field force and headquarters staff. The economic slowdown and the tragedy of
September 11th were superimposed upon the retirement and succession of the Company's senior
management. Despite this, we outperformed the staffing industry by most measures. While revenues
were flat in 2001 compared with 2000, assignment margins improved and average bill rates increased
by over 6%. Our balance sheet was stronger than ever with over $30 milion in cash and equivalents and
no debt. In addition, we reinforced our infrastructure to support our next chapter of growth, and accelerated our
expansion into healthcare occupations. Our resilience earned On Assignment a record ninth year on
Forbes magazine’s list of the “200 Best Small Companies in America”

Our ability to perform at or near the top of our industry, even in tough labor markets, can be attributed to
our careful focus upon high-value occupations, the power of our Quality Assignments to command
attractive gross margins, and the efficiency of our Account Managers and support operations. The
Company responded effectively to lower industry-wide demand for workers by building Account
Managers’ client marketing skills, and by concentrating them on the most productive geographic markets.
To meet these challenges and realize our future goals, we invested in experienced sales leadership at
the senior and divisional levels, and specifically in Lab Support and Healthcare Financial Staff, businesses . revenue
in which obtaining new clients is the key to growth. in millions of dollars

In addition to meeting industry challenges, in 2001 we streamlined our organization and further automated
operations to boost productivity, speed information flow, and reduce costs. Our European Lab Support
division continued its expansion, and we established a headquarters operation in Windsor, England, and
recruited senior leadership as a catalyst to accelerate our European growth. Our allied healthcare divisions,
Clinical Lab Staff and Diagnostic Imaging Staff, continued to grow in their vibrant clinical healthcare
staffing niches, and expanded operating margins throughout the year. Our practice of engaging only
industry professionals as Account Managers, one of the cornerstones of our operating model and our
success, is producing a particularly strong competitive advantage by building strong relationships with our
temporary workers in these employee — scarce healthcare occupations.

Our long-term goal remains: sustained growth from a portfolio of diversified professional science and
healthcare staffing businesses that target above-average returns by focusing upon high-value occupations in
growing markets. Our newest divisions serve the expanding market for clinical healthcare staff, and provide
complementary diversification as well as create opportunities for accelerated growth and reinvestment
of our capital, thereby furthering our long-term goals. We are matching our investment in field operations
with parallel strengthening of our infrastructure, so that we can put our strong balance sheet to effective use.

We closed 2001 having turned many challenges into opportunities to reaffirm the strength of
On Assignment. Our Board of Directors, Account Managers, the management team, and headquarters
staff deserve special recognition and thanks for their dedication, can-do attitude, and support.

We entered 2002 with a compelling sense of purpose, and a reinvigorated organization. Our agenda for
building sharehclder value is clear and distinct: moving Lab Support closer to achieving its full growth
potential, and aggressively expanding our healthcare staffing businesses. Both should pave the way
through the near-term economic uncertainties with improving performance in 2002 and even brighter
prospects for 2003. | thank you, fellow shareholders, for your continued support and enthusiasm as we
enter this exciting next chapter for On Assignment. @

Respectiully,

W

S
Joe Peterson, M.D. lo7iliSe

President and Chief Executive Officer diluted emings per shre
in dollars
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PART I

Item 1. Business

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements regarding the future financial
condition and results of operations and the Company’s business operations. The words “believes,” “antici-
pates,” “plans,” “expects,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such
Statements involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual results could differ materially from those
discussed herein. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those
discussed in “Risk Factors that May Affect Future Results” in item 1 of this report, as well as those discussed
elsewhere in this report and the registrant’s other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

General

On Assignment, Inc. (the “Company”), through its first temporary service, Lab Support, is a leading
nationwide provider of temporary scientific professionals to laboratories in the biotechnology, pharmaceutical,
food and beverage, chemical and environmental industries. In July 1998, the Company acquired substantially
all of the assets, offices and operations of LabStaffers, Inc., which were added to the Lab Support temporary
service. On May 12, 1997, the Company formed Assignment Ready Inc., a Canadian corporation and wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and commenced operations in Toronto as Lab Support Canada, during the
third quarter of 1997. On February 2, 1999, the Company formed On Assignment UK Limited, a UK
corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. On February 16, 1999, On Assignment UK Limited
formed Lab Support (UK) Limited, a UK corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of On Assignment UK
Limited, and commenced operations as Lab Support UK during the first quarter of 1999. On June §, 2000, the
Company formed On Assignment Lab Support B.V., a Netherlands corporation and wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and commenced operations during the second quarter of 2000. On August 25, 2000, the
Company formed Cn Assignment Lab Support N.V., a Belgium corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and commenced operations during the third quarter of 2000. On April 14, 2001, the company
formed Lab Support Ireland Limited, an Ireland corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and commenced operations during the second quarter of 2001, In January 1994, the Company established its
second temporary service, Finance Support, with the acquisition of 1st Choice Personnel, Inc. Finance
Support was expanded in December 1994, with the acquisition of substantially all of the assets, offices and
operations of Sklar Resource Group, Inc. With a shift in Finance Support’s business development focus to
medical billing and collections, in January 1997 the name of Finance Support was changed to Healthcare
Financial Staffing. In the third quarter of 1999, the Company established its third temporary service, Clinical
Lab Staff and in the third quarter of 2001 its fourth temporary service, Diagnostic Imaging Staff. Both of these
temporary services provide scientific and medical professionals to hospitals, physicians’ offices, clinics,
reference laboratories and HMQOs. The Company has two operating segments: Lab Support and Healthcare
Staffing, and all of the Company’s domestic operations in these segments are consolidated as divisions of the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Assignment Ready, Inc., a Delaware Corporation. The Healthcare
Staffing segment includes the combined results of Healthcare Financial Staffing, Clinical Lab Staff and
Diagnostic Imaging Staff. The different temporary services were grouped under these two operating segments
as they have similar economic characteristics and they meet the aggregation criteria of SFAS No. 131. As of
December 31, 2001, the Company served 81 operational markets through a network of 171 branch offices.

On March 27, 2002, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger
Agreement”’) with Health Personnel Options Corporation (“HPQO”), which is primarily a temporary provider
of travel nurses and other allied healtheare staff to its clients. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement,
HPO will be merged into a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition of HPO (the “HPO
Transaction”) is scheduled to be completed in April, 2002. Other terms of the Merger Transaction are
described in Note 12, “Subsequent Events”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.
The Merger Agreement has been filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-K, to which reference is made for a full
understanding of the HPO Transaction.




The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 26651 West Agoura Road, Calabasas, California
91302 and its telephone number is (818) §78-7900. The Company was incorporated on December 30, 1985.

On Assignment’s Approach

The Company’s strategy is to serve the needs of targeted industries for quality assignments of temporary
professionals. In contrast to the mass market approach used for temporary office/clerical and light industrial
personnel, the Company believes effective assignments of temporary professionals require the person making
assignments to have significant knowledge of the client’s industry and be able to assess the specific needs of
the client as well as the temporary professionals’ qualifications. As a result, the Company has developed a
tailored approach to the assignment process — the Account Manager System. Unlike traditional approaches,
the Account Manager System is based on the use of experienced professionals, Account Managers, to manage
the assignment process. Account Managers meet with clients’ managers to understand position descriptions
and workplace environments, and with temporary employee candidates to assess their qualifications and
interests. With this information, Account Managers can make quality assignments of temporary professionals
to clients, typically within 24 to 48 hours of client requests. The Company’s corporate office performs many
functions that allow Account Managers to focus more effectively on the assignment of temporary profession-
als. These functions include recruiting, ongoing training and coaching, appointment making, business
development and administrative support. The corporate office also selects, opens and maintains branch offices
according to a standardized model. Temporary personnel assigned to clients are employees of the Company,
though clients provide on-the-job supervisors for temporary personnel. Therefore, clients control and direct the
work of temporary personnel and approve hours worked, while the Company is responsible for many of the
activities typically handled by the client’s personnel department.

Branch Office Network

At December 31, 2001, the Company had 81 Lab Support segment branch offices and 90 Healthcare
Staffing segment branch offices. Of this total of 171 branch offices, 61 branch offices involved shared office
space among divisions. Through this network of branch offices, the Company served the following operational
markets:

Alexandria, VA Dayton, OH Kansas City, MO Pasadena, CA San Francisco, CA
Ann Arbor, MI Denver, CO Las Vegas, NV Philadelphia, PA San Jose, CA
Antwerp, Belgium Des Moines, 1A Leeds, United Kingdom Phoenix, AZ Savannah, GA
Atlanta, GA Detroit, M1 London, United Kingdom Piscataway, NJ Seattle, WA
Baltimore, MD Dublin, Ireland Los Angeles, CA Pittsburgh, PA * St. Louis, MO
Birmingham, United Kingdom Edmonton, AB, Canada Louisville, KY Pleasanton, CA Tampa, FL

Boston, MA Eindhoven, Netherlands Madison, WI Portland, OR Toronto, ON, Canada
Buffalo, NY Escondido, CA Manchester, United Kingdom Princeton, NJ Tulsa, OK
Cambridge, United Kingdom Ft. Lauderdale, FL Memphis, TN Raleigh-Durham, NC Utrecht, Netherlands
Charlotte, NC Ft. Worth, TX Miami, FL Richmond, VA Vancouver, BC, Canada
Cheshire, CT Glasgow, Scotland Milwaukee, W1 Riverside, CA Washington, DC
Chicago, IL Grand Rapids, MI Minneapolis, MN Rotterdam, Netherlands White Plains, NY
Cincinnati, OH Greensboro, NC Montreal, QC, Canada San Bernardino, CA Worcester, MA
Cleveland, OH Harrisburg, PA New Orleans, LA Sacramento, CA

Columbus, OH Houston, TX Oakland, CA Salt Lake City, UT

Costa Mesa, CA Indianapolis, IN Oklahoma City, OK San Antonio, TX

Dallas, TX Jacksenville, FL Oxford, United Kingdom San Diego, CA

Clients

The Lab Support segment’s clients primarily include biotechnology, pharmaceutical, food and beverage,

chemical and environmental companies. The Healthcare Staffing segment’s clients primarily include hospitals,
central billing offices, physicians’ groups, HMO’s, clinics, reference labs and university research and student
health centers. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company provided assignment professionals to
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approximately 6,000 clients. All temporary assignments, regardless of their planned length, may be terminated
without prior notice by the client or the temporary employee.

The Temporary Professional

The skill and experience levels of the Lab Support segment’s temporary professional employees range
from scientists, engineers, geologists, industrial hygienists and safety professionals with bachelor and/or
masters degrees and considerable experience to technicians with limited chemistry or biology background and
lab experience and environmental field technicians with some applicable experience. The skill and experience
levels of the Healthcare Staffing segment’s temporary professional employee range from medical and
laboratory clinical technologists to phlebotomists and medical assistants or they typically have two or more
years of medical billing and collection experience.

Hourly wage rates are established according to local market conditions. The Company pays the related
costs of employment including social security taxes, federal and state unemployment taxes, workers’
compensation insurance and other similar costs. After minimum service periods and hours worked, the
Company also provides paid holidays, allows participation in the Company’s 401 (k) Retirement Savings Plan
and Employee Stock Purchase Plan, creates eligibility for an annual bonus, and facilitates access to and
supplements the cost of health insurance for its temporary employees.

Expansion in Existing Professions and into Other Professions .

The Company intends to expand its services internationally and domestically in the laboratory and
scientific, clinical laboratory, medical staffing and medical billing and collections fields it currently serves and
to apply its approach to the assignment of temporary professionals in other fields. The Company believes that
its experience with the Account Manager System and centralized operational support will enable it to enter
new markets effectively. The Company continually reviews opportunities in various industries, evaluating the
current volume and profitability of temporary assignments, the length of assignments, the degree of
specialization necessary to be successful, the competitive environment and the applicability of its Account
Manager approach. If attractive markets are identified, the Company may enter these markets through
acquisition or internal growth. The Company’s January 1994 acquisition of st Choice Personnel, Inc.,
December 1994 acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Sklar Resource Group, Inc., July 1998
acquisition of substantially all of the assets of LabStaffers, Inc. and its proposed acquisition during April 2002
as described in Note 12, “Subsequent Events”, of the Notes.to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8§,
were consistent with this ongoing activity, and the Company periodically engages in discussions with possible
acquisition candidates.

Competition

The temporary services industry is highly competitive and fragmented and has low barriers to entry. The
Company believes Lab Support is one of the few nationwide temporary service providers that specialize
exclusively in scientific laboratory personnel. Although other nationwide temporary personnel companies
compete with the Company with respect to scientific, clinical laboratory and medical technologist, environ-
mental services and medical billing and collecting personnel, many of these companies focus on office/clerical
and light and heavy industrial personnel, which account for approximately 80% of the overall temporary
personnel services market. These companies include Manpower, Inc., Kelly Services, Inc., Adecco, and
Acerotech, Inc., each of which is larger and has substantially greater financial and marketing resources than the
Company.

The Company also competes with temporary personnel agencies on a regional and local basis. Frequently,
the strongest competition in a particular market is a local company with established relationships. The
Company also competes with its clients that directly advertise or seek referrals of qualified candidates on their
own behalf.

The principal competitive factors in attracting qualified candidates for temporary employment are salaries
and benefits, speed, quality and duraiion of assignments and responsiveness to the needs of employees. The
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Company believes that many persons seeking temporary employment through the Company are also pursuing
employment through other means, including other temporary employment service firms. Therefore, the speed
and availability of appropriate assignments is an important factor in the Company’s ability to complete
assignments of qualified candidates. In addition to having high quality temporary personnel to assign in a
timely manner, the principal competitive factors in obtaining and retaining clients in the temporary services
industry are correctly understanding the client’s specific job requirements, the appropriateness of the
temporary personnel assigned to the client, the price of services and the monitoring of client satisfaction.
Although the Company believes it competes favorably with respect to these factors, it expects competition to
increase.

Employees

At December 31, 2001, the Company employed approximately 346 regular employees, including Account
Managers and corporate office employees. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company employed
approximately 16,000 temporary employees. None of the Company’s employees, including its temporary
employees, are represented by a collective bargaining agreement. The Company believes its employee
relations are good.

Regulation

The Company’s operations are subject to applicable state and local regulations, both domestically and
internationally, governing the provision of personnel placement services which require personnel companies to
be licensed or separately registered. To date, the Company has not experienced any material difficulties in
complying with such regulations. State mandated workers’ compensation and unemployment insurance
premiums, which the Company pays for its temporary and regular employees, can have a direct effect on the
Company’s cost of services and thereby, profitability.

Proprietary Rights

The Company has registered its OnAssignment®, Lab Support®, Healthcare Financial Staffing®, and
Clinical Lab Staff® service marks with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The Company has
also registered “The Quality Assignment” mark with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The
Company has also registered its Lab Support service mark in Canada and the UK and has applied for the use
of the Lab Support service mark in the Netherlands and Belgium. The Company has also obtained European
Community registration for its “On Assignment Employer of Knowledge Workers” logo and for “On
Assignment Lab Support Science Professionals On Assignment” logo. The Company has rights in other
trademarks used in connection with its business and has other applications pending for the international use of
its service marks.

Health Personnel Options Corporation

If the HPO Transaction is consummated under the terms of the Merger Agreement executed by the
Company on March 27, 2002, the business of HPO will be operated by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. HPO’s current business includes three operating divisions: Nurse Travel, Allied Travel, and Local
Staffing.

The Nurse Travel division provides Registered Nurses for contract assignments of 4 to 14 weeks or more.
As of February 3, 2002, the Nurse Travel division had over 536 traveling nurse professionals on assignment
and maintained contracts with approximately 325 hospitals throughout the United States. The Nurse Travel
division is operated from HPQ’s headquarters in Cincinnati, Ohio.

The Allied Travel division provides radiology professionals, laboratory professionals, respiratory therapists
and surgical techs for contract periods of 13 weeks or more. As of February 3, 2002, Allied Travel division had
63 traveling allied healthcare professionals on assignment, and has placed personnel at over 60 hospitals during
2002. The Allied Travel division is operated from HPO’s headquarters in Cincinnati, Ohio.
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The Local Staffing division places health care personnel and medical clerical personnel typically for
periods of one week or longer. As of February 3, 2002, the Local Staffing division had 236 local allied and
medical clerical professionals on assignment. The Local Staffing division’s clients include hospitals, physician
practices, clinics and dentists. As of January 31, 2002, the Local Staffing division had 850 active clients. HPO
has local staffing offices in Minneapolis, MN, Milwaukee, WI, Columbus, OH, Cincinnati, OH and
Indianapolis, IN.

Risk Factors that May Affect Future Results

The Company operates in a highly competitive environment that involves a number of risks, many of
which are beyond the Company’s control. The following discussion highlights some of the risks that may affect
the Company's future results.

Risks Related to Acquisition

The HPO Transaction, as discussed in Note 12, “Subsequent Events”, of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, is subject to closing conditions that could prevent the Company from
_ completing the merger on the scheduled timetable or at all. The Company has incurred significant costs with
respect to its due diligence procedures specifically related to the HPO Transaction. If the merger is not
consummated, the Company will be required to expense all of the costs associated with the HPO Transaction.

Integrating the Company’s operations with those of HPO may strain the Company’s resources. The
significant expansion of the Company’s business and operations, both in terms of geography and magnitude
resulting from the HPO Transaction will require the dedication of management resources that may
temporarily detract from the Company’s day-to-day business. These types of demands and uncertainties could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The
Company may not be able to manage the combined operations and businesses effectively or realize any of the
anticipated benefits of the HPO Transaction.

Future sales of the Company’s common stock to be issued under the terms of the Merger Agreement, may
depress the Company’s stock price. Terms of the Merger Agreement require approximately 50% of the
purchase price to be paid through the issuance of the Company’s common stock. Approximately 3,900,000
shares of the Company’s common stock or 17% of its outstanding shares will be issued in connection with the
HPO Transaction. The Company is obligated to register approximately 95% of these shares for resale by the
holders thereof in the public market. Sales of a substantial number of these shares in the public market, or the
perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect the market price of the Company’s common
stock.

Other Risks

Uncertainty of Future Operating Results, Quarterly Fluctuations and Seasonality. Future operating
results will depend on many factors, including demand for the Company’s services, the market’s acceptance of
price changes, the productivity, recruitment and retention of Account Managers, the results of the Company’s
expansion into new geographic markets, the degree and nature of competition, the effectiveness of the
Company’s expansion into other professions, and the Company’s ability to control costs and manage its
accounts receivable. The Company and the temporary services industry as a whole typically experience
seasonal declines in demand from the year-end holiday season through early February and during June, July
and August. The Company has experienced variability in the duration and depth of these seasonal declines,
which in turn have materially affected period-to-period and current period-to-prior period comparisons of its
financial and operating performance. As a result of these and other factors, there can be no assurance that the
Company will be able to grow in future periods, sustain its past rate of revenue growth or maintain profitability
on a quarterly or annual basis. If in some future quarter or quarters the Company’s operating results are below
the expectations of public market analysts or investors, the market price of its common stock may decline
significantly.




Reliance on and Ability to Attract, Develop and Retain Account Managers. The Company relies
significantly on the performance of its Account Managers, who have primary responsibility for all aspects of
the process of assigning the Company’s temporary employees to clients. The Company is highly dependent on
its ability to hire, develop and retain qualified Account Managers, as well as on the productivity of its Account
Managers. The available pool of qualified Account Manager candidates is limited. In addition, prior to joining
the Company, the typical Account Manager has no prior experience in the temporary employment industry.
The Company commits substantial resources to the recruitment, training, development and operational
support of its Account Managers. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue to
recruit, train and retain sufficient numbers of qualified Account Managers or that Account Managers will
achieve desired productivity levels. Failure to achieve planned numbers of Account Managers or productivity
of Account Managers could result in a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of
operations and business.

Expansion in Existing Professions and into Other Professions. The Company plans to expand its
services domestically and internationally within the laboratory and scientific, clinical laboratory and medical
staffing, and medical billing and collections fields it currently serves and to other professional fields. The
success of the Company’s expansion efforts will depend on a number of factors, including the Company’s
ability to adapt the Account Manager system used in its divisions to other industries and professions, recruit
and train new Account Managers with the particular industry or professional experience, establish client
relationships in new industries and successfully recruit, qualify and orient new temporary professionals. The
ability to manage these factors may be more difficult or take more resources than the Company anticipates,
particularly since they may involve industries, clients and professionals that the Company has no experience
with, The Company may decide to pursue future expansion by internal growth or acquisition. The rate at
which the Company establishes new services may significantly affect the Company’s operating and financial
results, especially in the quarters of and immediately following expansion into new domestic and international
professional markets. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully expand its
services in the fields it currently serves, identify new professional fields suitable for expansion or continue to
grow,

Planned International Operations Face Special Risks. In the first quarter of 1999, the Company
expanded its operations to the UK and during 2000, the Company expanded into the Netherlands and
Belgium. In the second quarter of 2001, the Company expanded its operations to Ireland. The Company
intends to expand its operations in Europe in the future. The Company has limited experience in marketing,
selling, and particularly, supporting its services outside of North America. Development of such skills may be
more difficult or take longer than the Company anticipates, especially due to the fact that its centralized
support functions in Calabasas, California will not be able to provide the same level of support to operations
outside of North America as it does to its current North American operations. In addition to establishing
operations support functions outside North America, the Company will have to address language barriers and
different regulations of temporary employment. Moreover, international operations are subject to a variety of
additional risks associated with conducting business internationally that could seriously harm the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations. These risks may include the following: problems in collecting
accounts receivable; the impact of recessions in economies outside the United States; unexpected changes in
regulatory requirements; fluctuations in currency exchange rates; seasonal reductions in business activity
during the summer months in Europe; and potentially adverse tax consequences.

Dependence on Availability of Qualified Temporary Professional Employees. The Company is depen-
dent upon continuing to attract qualified laboratory and scientific, clinical laboratory and medical technologist,
environmental services and medical billing and collecting personnel with a broad range of skills and experience
in order to meet client needs. The Company competes for such personnel with other temporary personnel
companies, as well as actual and potential clients, some of which seek to fill positions with either regular or
temporary employees. In addition, the Company’s temporary employees sometimes become regular employees
- of the Company’s clients. There can be no assurance that qualified laboratory and scientific, clinical laboratory
.and medical technologist, environmental services, and medical billing and collections personnel will be
available to the Company in adequate numbers.




Highly Competitive Market. The temporary services industry is highly competitive and fragmented,
with limited barriers to entry. The Company competes in national, regional and local markets with full-service
agencies and in regional and local markets with specialized temporary services agencies. Several of these
companies have significantly greater marketing and financial resources than those of the Company. As the
Company expands into new geographic markets, its success will depend in part on its ability to gain market
share from competitors. The Company expects that competition will increase in the future and there can be no
assurance that the Company will remain competitive.

Effect of Fluctuations in the General Economy. Demand for temporary services is significantly affected
by the general level of economic activity. As economic activity slows, many companies reduce their usage of
temporary employees before undertaking layoffs of their regular employees. As economic activity increases,
many clients convert their temporary employees to regular employees which, depending on the Company’s
agreement with the client and when such conversion occurs, may not result in any conversion fee revenue for
the Company. The Company is unable to predict the level of economic activity at any particular time and its
effect on the Company’s operating and financial results.

Terminability of Client Arrangements. The Company’s arrangements with clients are terminable at will
and do not require clients to use the Company’s services. All temporary assignments, regardiess of their
planned length, may be terminated without advance notice. There can be no assurance that existing clients will
continue to use the Company’s services at historical levels, if at all.

Employment Liability Risks. The Company employs and assigns temporary employees to the work-
places of other businesses. Inherent risks of such activity include possible claims of errors and omissions,
misuse of customers’ proprietary information, discrimination and harassment, theft of client property, and
other criminal activity or torts by temporary employees. The Company seeks to reduce its liability for the acts
of its temporary employees by providing in its arrangements with most clients that temporary personnel work
under the client’s supervision, control and direction. There can be no assurance that such arrangements will be
enforceable or that, if enforceable, would be sufficient to preclude liability as.a result of the actions of the
Company’s temporary personnel. In addition, there can be no assurance that current liability insurance
coverage will be adequate or will continue to be available in sufficient amounts.

Workers’ Compensation Expense. The Company maintains a partially self-insured workers’ compensa-
tion program. In connection with this program, the Company pays a base premium plus actual losses incurred
up to certain levels, and is insured for losses greater than certain levels per occurrence and in the aggregate.
The Company seeks to minimize the impact of workers’ compensation losses through a proactive claims
management and accident reduction program. While the Company believes that current loss reserves are
reasonable based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported, there can be no
assurance that loss reserves and insurance coverage will be adequate in amount to cover all workers’
compensation claims.

Dependence on Key Officers. The Company’s future success depends in significant part upon the
continued service of its key officers. Competition for such personnel is intense and there can be no assurance
that the Company will retain its key officers or that it can attract or retain other highly qualified managerial
personnel in the future. The loss of certain of its key officers could have a material adverse effect upon the
Company’s business, operating results and financial condition.

On February 14, 2001 the Company announced that H. Tom Buelter, its Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board intended to retire during 2001 as Chief Executive Officer once a successor to his
position had been hired. On June 27, 2001, the Company announced the hiring of Joseph Peterson, M.D. to
succeed H. Tom Buelter. On August 7, 2001, the Company announced the election of Dr. Peterson as Chief
Executive Officer, effective September 1, 2001. The Company also announced that Dr. Peterson would
succeed Kathy West, who announced her retirement effective September 1, 2001, as President of the
Company. On February 1, 2002, the Company announced the resignation of H. Tom Buelter as Chairman of
the Board effective immediately.




Government Regulations. In many states and foreign countries, the temporary services industry is
regulated, and firms such as the Company must be registered or qualify for an exemption from registration.
While these regulations have not materially affected the conduct of the Company’s business to date, there can
be no assurance that future domestic or foreign regulations will not have such effect. Mandated workers’
compensation and unemployment insurance premiums, which the Company pays for its temporary as well as
its regular employees in both its domestic and international operations, can have a direct effect on cost of
services and thereby, profitability. In the past, federal legislative proposals for national health insurance have
included provisions extending health insurance benefits to temporary employees and some states could impose
sales taxes or raise sales tax rates on temporary services. Further increases in such premiums or rates or the
introduction of new regulatory provisions could substantially raise the costs associated with hiring temporary
employees and there is no assurance that these increased costs could be passed on to clients without a
significant decrease in the demand for temporary employees.

Many of the risk factors relating to the Company that are described above may also affect the future
results of HPQO, and therefore those of the Company if the HPO transaction is completed.
Item 2. Properties

The Company has leased approximately 30,500 square feet of office space through March 2004, for its
corporate headquarters in Calabasas, California. In addition, the Company leases office space in 100 branch
office locations in the metropolitan areas listed under the caption “Branch Office Network” in Item | hereof.
A branch office typically occupies space ranging from approximately 1,500 to 2,500 square feet with lease
terms that typically range from six months to five years.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

(a) There is no material legal proceeding to which the Company is a party or to which its properties are
subject.

(b) No material legal proceedings were terminated in the fourth quarter of 2001.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Executive officers of the registrant

The executive officers of the Company and their ages as of December 31, 2001 were:

Name Age Position

Joseph Peterson, M.D. ..................... 42 Chief Executive Officer, President and Director

Ronald W. Rudolph  ....................... 58 Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief
Financial Officer

Dana Hallberg ........... ... . ... . ..., 38  Senior Vice President, Global Operations(1)

Stephen T. Minithan ....................... 52 Senior Vice President, Field Support

Shelly Carolan .......... P 33 Senior Vice President, Lab Support Domestic
Operations

(1) Senior Vice President, Review and Analysis effective January 14, 2002.

Joseph Peterson, M.D. joined the company in July 200! and has served as Chief Executive Officer and
President since September 2001. Dr. Peterson also serves as a Director of the Company and as a Director of
Global Health Council, the world’s largest membership alliance dedicated to improving health worldwide.
From 1992 through 2001, Dr. Peterson co-founded and was Chief Executive Officer of three companies
providing innovative customer care to large institutional clients primarily in the financial services industry.
From 1988 through 1991, Dr. Peterson served as Medical Director and ultimately Chief Operating Officer of
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World Access, Inc., a subsidiary of Blue Cross & Blue Shield of the National Capital Area. Dr. Peterson is a
Board-certified emergency physician, and practiced his specialty for ten years in the Emergency Department
of the George Washington University Hospital, in Washington, D.C., where he was an Associate Professor of
Emergency Medicine, and a Fellow of the American Board of Emergency Medicine.

Ronald W. Rudolph has served as Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer since
March 2000. From January 1999 through March 2000, Mr. Rudolph served as Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer. From October 1996 through December 1998, Mr. Rudolph served as Senior Vice
President, Finance and Operations Support, and Chief Financial Officer. From January 1996 through October
1996, Mr. Rudolph served as Senior Vice President, Finance and Administration, and Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. Rudolph joined the Company in April 1995, as Vice President, Finance and Administration, and Chief
Financial Officer. From April 1987 to September 1994, Mr. Rudolph was Vice President, Finance and
Administration, and Chief Financial Officer of Retix, a manufacturer of enterprise networking devices, and
from June 1993 to September 1994, Mr. Rudolph was a director of Retix. Mr. Rudolph holds an MBA from
the University of Chicago, a Bachelor of Industrial Engineering from Ohio State University and is a Certified
Public Accountant.

Dana Hallberg has served as Senior Vice President, Review and Analysis since January 2002. From July
2001 through January 2002, Ms. Hallberg served as Senior Vice President, Global Operations. From October
2000 through June 2001, Ms. Hallberg served as Senior Vice President, International Operations. From
January 1999 through October 2000, Ms. Hallberg served as Vice President, International Operations. From
January 1996 through December 1998, Ms. Hallberg served as Vice President with responsibilities including
Business Development, U.S. and Canadian Operations. From April 1993 through December 1995,
Ms. Hallberg served as Director of Operations, supporting branch offices throughout the east coast of the U.S.
Ms. Hallberg joined the Company in 1991 as an Account Manager for the Piscataway, New Jersey office and
served in that role through March 1993. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Haliberg worked for Hoechst-
Roussel Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (renamed Aventis) in Bridgewater, New Jersey as an Analytical Research
Chemist from 1986 to 1990. From 1984 to 1986, Ms. Hallberg worked for Mobil Oil Corporation in Princeton,
New Jersey as an Analytical Chemist. Ms. Hallberg holds a BS in Chemistry.

Stephen T. Minihan joined the Company in December 2001 as Senior Vice President, Field Support.
From November 1995 to April 2001, Mr. Minihan was President and Director of PayPoint Electronic
Payment Systems, Inc. PayPoint is a diversified electronic transactions service provider and network, operating
as an incorporated subsidiary of ARCO. From August 1994 to November 1995, Mr. Minihan served as the
Manager of Credit for ARCC Products Company, the petroleum refining and marketing subsidiary of ARCO.
From June 1992 to August 1994, Mr. Minihan was the Manager, Corporate Finance for ARCO, an integrated
petroleum and chemical company. Mr. Minihan holds an MBA with specialization in financial management
from the University of Chicago and a BS in Economics from Florida State University.

Shelly Carolan has served as Senior Vice President, Lab Support Domestic Operations since November
2001. From December 1999 through November 2001, Ms. Carolan served as Vice President, East Coast
Operations. From February 1999 through-November 1999, Ms. Carolan served as Director of Operations.
From April 1997 through January 1999, Ms. Carolan served as Manager of Operations. Ms. Carolan joined
the Company in September 1994 as an Account Manager in the Piscataway, New Jersey office before opening
the Elmwood Park, New Jersey office in November 1994 and continuing in the role of Account Manager
through March 1997. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Carolan worked as a Volatile Organics Department
Supervisor at IEA, Inc. from April 1991 through August 1994. Ms. Carolan holds a BS from Boston
University.




PART II

Item S. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder NMatters

The Company’s Common Stock trades on the Nasdag Stock Market under the symbol ASGN. The
following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices, as reported on the Nasdaq Stock Market for
the period from January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2001. At January 31, 2002, the Company had approximately
100 holders of record of its Common Stock (although the Company has been informed there are in excess of
approximately 3,600 beneficial owners) and 22,678,259 shares outstanding.

Price Range of
Common Stock

High  Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2000
First QUarter. . o ottt 22.50  13.75
Second QUaI T ..\ttt e e 3431 22.25
Third Quarter . .. ... e 33.00 25.06
Fourth QUarter . . ..o e e 3225 21.75

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001
ISt QUAIET . . . vttt i e e e e 29.69 18.38
Second QUATIEr .. ..ot e 2320 1630
Third QUAaITET . . . ottt e e e e e 20.07 1345
Fourth Quarter........... P 2400 15.66

On March 7, 2000, the Board of Directors authorized a two-for-one stock split, effected as a 100 percent
common stock dividend, to be distributed on April 3, 2000 to shareholders of record as of March 27, 2000. All
references to number of shares, sales prices and per share amounts of the Company’s common stock have been
retroactively restated to reflect the increased number of common shares outstanding.

Since inception, the Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and
currently plans to retain all earnings to support the development and expansion of its business. The Company
has no present intention of paying any dividends on its Common Stock in the foreseeable future. However, the
Board of Directors of the Company periodically reviews the Company’s dividend policy to determine whether
the declaration of dividends is appropriate.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected financial data of the Company. This historical data should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this

Form 10-K.

Income Statement Data
Revenues .......... ... i,
Costof services .............. ... ...,

Gross profit ............. . .. i i,
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income . ..................c.....
Interest income, net . ...................

Income before income taxes ...............
Provision for income taxes ...............

Netincome ... een.
Basic earnings per share...................

Weighted average number of common shares
coutstanding. ... ...

Diluted earnings per share . ................

Weighted average number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding. .. ..
Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents and current portion of
marketable securities ...................

Working capital . ......... ... .
Total assets ................... e
Long-term liabilities . .....................
Stockholders’ equity ............ ... ... ...

Years Ended December 31,

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
(in thousands, except per share data)

$107,849  $132,741  $159,473  $195,080 $194,620
74,748 90,705 107,652 131,351 131,343
33,101 42,036 51,821 63,729 63,277
20,714 25,308 30,428 35,532 38,766
12,387 16,728 21,393 28,197 24,511
833 1,336 1,635 2,442 2,575
13,220 18,064 23,028 30,639 27,086
4,954 6,748 8,566 11,392 10,046
$ 8,266 $ 11,316 §$ 14462 $ 19,247 § 17,040
$§ 039 § 052 §$§ 066 $ 087 § 075
21,123 21,721 21,907 22,193 22,645
$§ 037 § 050 $§ 065 $ 083 § 074
22,063 22,604 22,372 23,080 23,037
$ 23,709 $ 30466 $ 35271 $ 63,122 § 88,580
35,225 43,987 54,769 84,717 105,851
44,864 62,028 71,740 105,556 125,251
39,272 54,226 63,447 95,291 114,779
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The discussion in this Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties.
The Company’s actual results could differ materially from those discussed herein. Factors that could cause or
contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, management of growth, particularly in
international markets, risks inherent in expansion into new international markets and new professions, the
integration of acquired operations, the Company’s ability to attract, train and retain qualified Account
Managers and temporary employees in the laboratory, science, financial and environmental fields, and other
risks discussed in “Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results” in Item 1 of this Annual Report, beginning
on page 5, as well as those discussed elsewhere in this Report and from time to time in the Company’s other
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Seasonality

The Company’s results have historically been subject to seasonal fluctuations. Demand for the Com-
pany’s temporary employees typically declines from the year-end holiday season through February, resulting in
a corresponding decrease in revenues, operating income and net income. Demand for the Company’s
temporary employees also often declines in June, July and August due to decreases in clients’ activity during
vacation periods and the availability of students to perform temporary work. As a result, the Company has
experienced slower growth or declines in revenues, operating income and net income during the first quarter
and from the second quarter to third quarter.

Years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001

Revenues. Revenues decreased by 0.2% from $195,080,000 in the year ended December 31, 2000, to
$194,620,000 in the year ended December 31, 2001, as a result of the decreased revenues of both the Lab
Support and the Healthcare Staffing segments.

The Lab Support segment’s revenues decreased by 0.3% from $139,986,000 in the year ended
December 31, 2000, to $139,558,000 in the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease in revenue was
primarily attributable to a 4.6% decrease in the number of temporary employees on assignment from
December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2001, partially offset by a 4.8% increase in average hourly billing rates
during 2001. The decrease in the number of temporary employees on assignment was primarily attributable to
the overall economic slowdown beginning in February 2001.

The Healthcare Staffing segment’s revenues remained relatively unchanged at $55,094,000 in the year
ended December 31, 2000 and $55,062,000 in the year ended December 31, 2001. The consistency in revenue
was primarily attributable to a 5.1% decrease in the number of temporary employees on assignment, offset by a
5.8% increase in average hourly billing rates during 2001. The decrease in the number of temporary employees
on assignment was primarily attributable to the overall economic slowdown beginning in February 2001.

Cost of Services. Cost of services consists solely of compensation for temporary employees and payroll
taxes, benefits and employment related expenses paid by the Company in connection with such compensation.
Cost of services remained relatively unchanged at $131,351,000 in 2000 to $131,343,000 in 2001. The Lab
Support segment’s cost of services as a percentage of revenues increased by 0.2% from 67.1% in 2000 to 67.3%
in 2001. This increase was primarily attributable to a 0.3% increase in workers’ compensation and a 0.2%
increase in employer paid benefits, partially offset by a 0.3% decrease in temporary employee compensation
and payroll taxes in 2001. The Healthcare Staffing segment’s cost of service as a percentage of revenues
remained consistent at 67.9% in 2000 and 2001. This result was primarily attributable to a 0.3% increase in
workers’ compensation and a 0.2% increase in employer paid benefits, offset by a 0.5% decrease in temporary
employee compensation and payroll taxes in 2001. The increase in workers’ compensation expense in both
segments resulted from higher insurance policy costs and an increase in actual workers’ compensation claims
reported and estimated incurred but not yet reported claims in 2001.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses include the
costs associated with the Company’s network of Account Managers and branch offices, including Account
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Manager compensation, rent, other office expenses and advertising for temporary employees, and corporate
office expenses, such as the salaries of corporate operations and support personnel, management compensa-
tion, Account Manager recruiting and training expenses, corporate advertising and promotion, rent and other
general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 9.1% from
$35,532,000 in 2000 to $38,766,000 in 2001. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
révenues increased from 18.2% in the 2000 period to 19.9% in the 2001 period. This result was primarily
attributable to investments in Account Manager training and recruiting and an increase in the hiring of new
Account Managers.

Interest Income. Interest income increased 3.5% from $2,442,000 in 2000 to $2,575,000 in 2001,
primarily as a result of interest earned on higher interest-bearing cash, cash equivalent and marketable
security account balances in 2001, partially offset by lower interest yields earned in 2001.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes decreased 11.8% from $11,392,000 in 2000 to
$10,046,000 in 2001. The Company’s effective tax rate decreased slightly from 37.2% in 2000 to 37.1% in
2001.

Years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000

Revenues. Revenues increased by 22.3% from $159,473,000 in the year ended December 31, 1999, to
$195,080,000 in the year ended December 31, 2000, as a result of the increased revenues of both the Lab
Support and the Healthcare Staffing segments.

The Lab Support segment’s revenues increased by 17.0% from $119,668,000 in the year ended
December 31, 1999, to $139,986,000 in the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in revenue was
primarily attributable to a 10.6% increase in the number of temporary employees on assignment from
December 31, 1999 to December 31, 2000 and to a lesser extent to a 5.2% increase in average hourly billing
rates during 2000. The increase in the number of temporary employees on assignment was primarily
attributable to the strong performance in most of the markets in which the Lab Support segment has older,
better established branches and to a lesser extent the contribution of new offices opened in the past year.

The Healthcare Staffing segment’s revenues increased by 38.4% from $39,805,000 in the year ended
December 31, 1999 to $55,094,000 in the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in revenue was
primarily attributable to a 36% increase in the number of temporary employees on assignment and to a lesser
extent to a 5.2% increase in average hourly billing rates during 2000. The increase in the number of temporary
employees on assignment was primarily attributable to the strong performance in most of the markets in which
the Healthcare Staffing segment has older, better established branches and to a lesser extent the contribution
of new offices opened in the past year.

Cost of Services. Cost of services consists solely of compensation for temporary employees and payroll
taxes, benefits and employment related expenses paid by the Company in connection with such compensation.
Cost of services increased 22.0% from $107,652,000 in 1999 to $131,351,000 in 2000. The Lab Support
segment’s cost of services as a percentage of revenues decreased by 0.4% from 67.5% in 1999 to 67.1% in 2000.
This decrease was primarily attributable to a 0.9% decrease in temporary employee compensation and payroll
taxes, partially offset by a 0.4% increase in workers’ compensation and a 0.1% increase in employer paid
benefits in 2000. The Healthcare Staffing segment’s cost of service as a percentage of revenues increased by
0.4% from 67.5% in 1999 to 67.9% in 2000. This increase was attributable to an increase in workers’
compensation expense. The increase in workers’ compensation expense in both segments resulted from an
increase in actual workers’ compensation claims reported and estimated incurred but not yet reported claims
in 2000. '

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses include the
costs associated with the Company’s network of Account Managers and branch offices, including Account
Manager compensation, rent, other office expenses and advertising for temporary employees, and corporate
office expenses, such as the salaries of corporate operations and support personnel, management compensa-
tion, Account Manager recruiting and training expenses, corporate advertising and promotion, rent and other
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general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 16.8% from
$30,428,000 in 1999 to $35,532,000 in 2000. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues decreased from 19.1% in the 1999 period to 18.2% in the 2000 period. This result was primarily
attributable to leveraging a centralized support system over a larger revenue base, offset by investments in
Account Manager training and recruiting, expenses for international expansion into Europe, and an increase in
the hiring of new Account Managers for the opening of new offices and the expansion of existing offices.

Interest Income. Interest income increased 49.4% from $1,635,000 in 1999 to $2,442,000 in 2000,
primarily as a result of interest earned on higher interest-bearing cash, cash equivalent and marketable
security account balances in 2000.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes increased 33.0% from $8,566,000 in 1999 to
$11,392,000 in 2000. The Company’s effective tax rate remained unchanged at 37.2% in 1999 and 2000.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The change in the Company’s liquidity during the year ended December 31, 2001 is the net effect of
funds generated by operations and from equity through employee stock incentive plans and the funds used for
repurchases of common stock and purchases of marketable securities net of sales and, to a lesser extent,
capital expenditures. As of December 31, 2001, the Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase, from
time to time, of up to 2,941,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. During the year ended December 31,
2001, the Company repurchased 473,500 shares of common stock on the open market bringing the total shares
repurchased under the authorization to 1,133,500. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company
generated $25,481,000 from operations, used $10,860,000 in investing activities and used $127,000 in financing
activities.

The Company’s working capital at December 31, 2001 was $105,851,000, including $65,694,000 in cash
and cash equivalents and $22,886,000 in short-term marketable securities. The Company’s working capital
requirements consist primarily of the financing of accounts receivables. At December 31, 2001, the Company
has no long-term debt outstanding or other financing agreements in place and had no material capital
commitments. ‘

As discussed in Note 12, “Subsequent Events”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8, the Company intends to complete a significant acquisition during April 2002. Under the proposed
terms of the Merger Agreement, total consideration of $150 million is to be paid 50% in cash, net of
outstanding debt, and 50% to be paid in the Company’s common stock, consisting of approximately 3,900,000
shares which upon issuance will represent approximately 17% of the Company’s outstanding common stock
shares. The Company believes it has sufficient cash available as noted in the paragraph above, and if additional
cash is required, has the ability to enter into financing agreements in order to satisfy cash requirements under
the Merger Agreement as well as meeting its working capital requirements for day-to-day operations on both a
short and long term basis.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 141 (SFAS No. 141),
“Business Combinations,” and Statement No. 142 (SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 as of July 1, 2001 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements. Amortization of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $151,000.
SFAS No. 142 includes requirements to test goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment
rather than amortize them. The Company has adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002, The Company is
currently evaluating the impairment provisions of SFAS No. 142 and has not determined the impact, if any,
they will have on its financial statements. -

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets”. SFAS 144 addresses the financial accounting and reporting issues for the impairment or
disposal of long-lived assets. This statement supersedes FASB 121 but retains the fundamental provisions for
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(a) recognition/measurement of impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used and (b) measurement of
long-lived assets to be disposed of by sales. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001,
and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has adopted SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002
and is currently evaluating the impact, if any, it will have on its financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8. The Company prepares its Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which require the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company
considers the following policies to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in
preparing its financial statements and the uncertainties that could impact its results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

Allowance For Doubtful Accounts. The Company estimates an allowance for doubtful accounts related
to trade receivables based on its analysis of specific accounts and historical collection experiences applied to
the remaining general accounts. For specific accounts, the Company uses its judgments, based on available
facts and circumstances, to record a specific reserve for that customer against amounts due to reduce the
receivable to the amount that is expected to be collected. For the remaining general accounts, a general
reserve is established based on a range of percentages applied to aging categories. These percentages are based
on historical collection experience. If circumstances change, the Company’s estimates of the recoverability of
amounts due the Company could change by a material amount.

Accrued Workers’ Compensation. The Company is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation
expense. This workers’ compensation program covers all of the Company’s temporary employees and regular
employees. In connection with this program, the Company pays a base premium plus actual losses incurred up
to certain levels, and is insured for losses greater than certain levels per occurrence and in the aggregate. The
self insurance claim liability is determined based on claims filed and claims incurred but not reported. In order
to ensure that the accrued workers’ compensation balance is adequate to cover all costs incurred under its
workers’ compensation program, at the end of each fiscal quarter, an actuarial report is prepared by an
independent third party who calculates the Company’s self insurance claim liability based on historical
experience and trends of industry data. If historical experiences and industry trends change, the self insurance
claim liability calculated by the third party actuary could change by a material amount.

Contingencies. The Company accounts for contingencies in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting
for Contingencies”. SFAS No. 5 requires that the Company record an estimated loss from a loss contingency
when information available prior to issuance of its financial statements indicates that it is probable that an
asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Accounting for contingencies such as legal matters requires the
Company to use its judgment. While the Company believes its accruals for these matters are adequate, if the
actual loss from a loss contingency is significantly different than the estimated loss, results of operations may
be over or understated.

Commercial Commitments

The Company has entered into several short term leases with respect to its corporate and branch office
locations as well as for various office equipment, such as fax machines and photo copiers. All of the lease
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agreements are accounted for as operating leases. The future minimum lease payment obligations under these
lease agreements are presented below by year:

Year Ended » Amount

2000 . $3,069,000
20008 . e 2,520,000
2004 . o e 1,483,000
20005 . 929,000
2006 . . 308,000.
AL T 5 VAT . . oo i 325,000
Total commercial COMMItIMENTS . . . ..ottt e e $8,634,000

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marker Risk

The Company is exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions in the normal course of
business, principally risks associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. The Company is
exposed to interest rate risk from its held to maturity investments. The interest rate risk is immaterial due to
the short maturity of the majority of these investments. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk from
the translation of foreign operations into U.S. dollars. Based on the relative size and nature of its foreign
operations, the Company does not believe that a ten percent change in foreign currencies would have a
material impact on its financial statements.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors of
On Assignment, Inc.
Calabasas, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of On Assignment, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed at Item 14. These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of On Assignment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

St § Toehi rcp

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 24, 2002 (March 27, 2002 as to Note 12)

17




ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) ............. ... i iinnn.
Marketable securities (Note 12) . ... ... i i
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

$1,460,000 (2000) and $1,667,000 (2001) ........................

Advances and deposits. ... ...
Prepaid €Xpenses . ... ...t e
Income taxes receivable
Deferred income taxes (NOt€ 7) . ..ottt

Total current assets . ..ottt

Office Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements, net (Note 2)..
Marketable securities. . ... ..ot i
Deferred income taxes (NOt€ 7) ..o ivr ittt it
Workers’ compensation restricted deposits (Note 6) ....................
Goodwill, net (INote 4) ... .o e e e
Other assets (INOtE 5) ... vttt e e e

Total ASSEtS ... it

FIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ... . e
Accrued payroll ... ... e
Income taxes payable
Deferred compensation (Note 5)........ ...,
Accrued workers’ compensation (Note 6)
Other accrued €Xpenses. . ...ttt

Total current liabilities . .......... .. ...

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes Sand 6) .....................
Stockholders’ Equity (Notes 1, 8 and 12):
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized,
No shares issued or outstanding in 2000 and 2001
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 75,000,000 shares authorized,
23,136,618 issued and outstanding in 2000 and 23,786,266 issued and
outstanding in 2001 ... ... .. e
Paid-in capital ....... ... ..
Deferred compensation liability (Note 5).............. ...t
Retained earnings. .. ... ...t uttt e
Accumulated other comprehensive income..........................

Less: Treasury Stock at cost, 660,000 shares in 2000
and 1,133,500 shares in 2001 .. ... . .. . i

Total stockholders” €quity ... ..covvt et
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ....................

December 31,

2000

2001

$ 51,202,000

$ 65,694,000

11,920,000 22,886,000
27,679,000 22,782,000
232,000 149,000
1,626,000 2,030,000

— 123,000

2,323,000 2,659,000
94,982,000 116,323,000
3,338,000 2,804,000
3,413,000 2,000,000
375,000 454,000
237,000 77,000
1,693,000 1,542,000
1,518,000 2,051,000
$105,556,000  $125,251,000
$ 701,000 $ 557,000
4,854,000 4,740,000
430,000 -
1,423,000 1,736,000
1,753,000 2,662,000
1,104,000 777,000
10,265,000 10,472,000
231,000 238,000
30,466,000 40,402,000
294,000 294,000
72,097,000 89,137,000
15,000 18,000
103,103,000 130,089,000
7,812,000 15,310,000
95,291,000 114,779,000
$105,556,000  $125,251,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Revenues. .. .o e $159,473,000  $195,080,000 $194,620,000
Cost of Services . ... iv i 107,652,000 131,351,000 131,343,000
Grossprofit ... ... 51,821,000 63,729,000 63,277,000
Selling, general and administrative expenses ........ 30,428,000 35,532,000 38,766,000
Operating income . ... .......ccovvivnnnnnn. A 21,393,000 28,197,000 24,511,000
Interest income, net.......... ... ... ... 1,635,000 2,442,000 2,575,000
Income before income taxes.......................... 23,028,000 30,639,000 27,086,000
Provision for income taxes (Note 7) ............... 8,566,000 11,392,000 10,046,000
Netincome . ...t i $ 14,462,000 $ 19,247,000 $ 17,040,000
Basic earnings pershare ............ ... . ... oo $ 0.66 § 087 $ 0.75
Weighted average number of Common Shares
Outstanding. .. ... i e 21,907,000 22,193,000 22,645,000
Diluted earnings per share ................c.covvnn... $ 065 $ 083 $ 0.74
Weighted average number of Common and Common
Equivalent Shares Qutstanding. ..................... 22,372,000 23,080,000 23,037,000

Net income

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
......................................... $14,462,000 $19,247,000  $17,040,000
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment ............... 12,000 26,000 3,000
Comprehensive iNCOME .. ...t inen e $14,474,000 $19,273,000 $17,043,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

INEt INCOME . o e e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization .................. ...
Provision for doubtful accounts ................. ... ... ...
Deferred income taxes. . ...t
Loss on disposal of furniture and equipment ...................
Tax benefit of disqualifying dispositions .......................

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable ....................
(Increase) Decrease in income taxes recejvable ................
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses ......................
Decrease (Increase) in workers’ compensation restricted deposits. .
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses..............
{Decrease) Increase in income taxes payable ..................

Net cash provided by operating activities ....................

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of marketable securities ............ ... ... ... ...,
Proceeds from the maturity of marketable securities . . . . . P
Acquisition of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements .. ..
Proceeds from sale of furniture and equipment ...................
Decrease (Increase) in advances and deposits ....................
Repayments of (Disbursements for) officer loan receivable .........
Increase in other assets .......... ...t ...
ACQUISTHON .ottt

Net cash used for investing activities. .......................

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options .................
Proceeds from issuance of common stock — .
Employee Stock Purchase Plan ..............................
Repurchases of common stock ........... ... .. ... ... o,
Common stock registration fee ............... ... ... ...

Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities . . ... PR
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents.........

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents .............
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period..................

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period . . .....................

Acquisition (Note 11):
Goodwill paid ........................... FP

Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
$ 14,462,000 $19,247,000 § 17,040,000
1,158,000 1,392,000 1,537,000
738,000 699,000 293,000
(785,000) (339,000) (379,000)
7,000 28,000 —
517,000 3,751,000 2,572,000
(4,927,000)  (5,644,000) 4,539,000
(431,000) 681,000 (126,000)
(651,000) 174,000 (407,000)
(1,000) (68,000) 160,000
484,000 1,579,000 684,000
— 425,000 (432,000)
10,571,000 21,925,000 25,481,000
(10,777,000)  (7,121,000)  (26,645,000)
5,455,000 5,195,000 17,093,000
(1,849,000)  (1,111,000) (855,000)
1,000 — 2,000
(4,000) (158,000) 81,000
(400,000) 400,000 -
(461,000) (519,000) (536,000)
(360,000) (360,000) —
(8,395,000)  (3,674,000)  (10,860,000)
1,778,000 8,559,000 7,148,000
264,000 261,000 234,000
(7,812,000) — (7,498,000)
— — (11,000)
(5,770,000) 8,820,000 (127,000)
8,000 11,000 (2,000)
(3,586,000) 27,082,000 14,492,000
27,706,000 24,120,000 51,202,000
$ 24,120,000  $51,202,000 $ 65,694,000
$ 360,000 $ 360,000 $ —

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

On Assignment, Inc. (the “Company”), has two operating segments: Lab Support and Healthcare
Staffing. The Lab Support segment provides temporary and permanent placement of scientific personnel with
laboratories and other institutions. The Healthcare Staffing segment includes the combined results of
Healthcare Financial Staffing, Clinical Lab Staff and Diagnostic. Imaging Staff. The Healthcare Staffing
segment provides temporary and permanent placement of medical billing and collection professionals and
laboratory and medical staffing personnel to the healthcare industry. Significant accounting policies are as
follows:

Principles of Consolidation. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Investments having a
maturity of more than three months and less than twelve months are classified under current assets as
marketable securities. Investments having a maturity of more than twelve months are classified under non-
current assets as marketable securities.

Marketable securities consist principally of Tax Exempt Municipal Bonds and Debt Securities issued by
U.S. Government Agencies with maturity dates greater than three months when purchased. All marketable
securities are classified as held to maturity and are recorded at amortized cost which approximated market at
December 31, 2000 and 2001. Non-current marketable securities are expected to mature during 2003.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities at December 31, 2000 and 2001 are
as follows:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
2000:
Current marketable securities . .......... $11,920,000 $ 41,000 $(66,000) $11,895,000
Non-current marketable securities ....... 3,413,000 59,000 (7,000) 3,465,000
Total. .......... . ... . $15,333,000  $100,000 $(73,000) $15,360,000
2001:
Current marketable securities ........... $22,886,000  $389,000 § —  $23,275,000
Non-current marketable securities ....... 2,000,000 106,000 — 2,106,000
Total. ... $24,886,000 $495,000 $ —  $25,381,000

Supplemental Cash Flow Information. Cash paid for income taxes (net of refunds) for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001 was $9,262,000, $6,906,000 and $8,412,000, respectively.

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable are stated net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately $1,460,000 and $1,667,000 at December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Allowance for
doubtful accounts is established and maintained based on estimates made by management through its review
of specific accounts and historical collection activity. The Company recorded bad debt expense of approxi-
mately $738,000, $699,000 and $293,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Office Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements and Depreciation. Office furniture, equip-
ment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, generally three to five years.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company evaluates long-lived assets and certain identifiable
intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an
asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the sum of the undiscounted future cash
flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, in which case a write-down is recorded to reduce the related
asset to its estimated fair value. No such impairment losses have been recognized as of December 31, 2001.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets”. SFAS 144 addresses the financial accounting and reporting issues for the impairment or
disposal of long-lived assets. This statement supersedes FASB 121 but retains the fundamental provisions for
(a) recognition/measurement of impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used and (b) measurement of
long-lived assets to be disposed of by sales. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001,
and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has adopted SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002
and is currently evaluating the impact, if any, it will have on its financial statements.

Income Taxes. Deferred taxes result from temporary differences between the bases of assets and
liabilities for financial and tax reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent future tax
consequences of these differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are
recovered or settled.

Stockholders Equity. On August 24, 2000, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment of Restated
Certificate of Incorporation (The “Certificate of Amendment”) with the Secretary of the State of Delaware.
The Certificate of Amendment increased the authorized number of shares of common stock from 25,000,000
to 75,000,000 and increased the combined authorized number of shares of preferred and common stock from
26,000,000 to 76,000,000. The Certificate of Amendment was approved by the Company’s stockholders on
June 13, 2000.

On June 15, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to 10% or 2,281,000
shares of its outstanding shares of common stock. On April 1, 1999, the Board of Directors had previously
authorized the Company to repurchase up to $15 million of its common stock. At December 31, 2000 and
December 31, 2001, the Company had repurchased 660,000 shares and 1,133,500 shares of its common stock
at a total cost of $7,812,000 and $15,310,000, respectively. The Company has remaining authorization to
repurchase 1,807,500 shares.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue from temporary assignments, net of credits and discounts, is recognized
when earned, based on hours worked by the Company’s temporary employees on a weekly basis. Permanent
placement fees are recognized when earned, upon conversion of a temporary employee to a client’s regular
employee.

Cost of Services. Cost of services consist of compensation for temporary employees and the related
payroll taxes and benefits incurred with respect to such compensation. Cost of services are recognized when
incurred based on hours worked by the Company’s temporary employees.

Foreign Currency Translation. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations, where the functional currency
is the local currency, are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange in effect on the balance sheet date.
Income and expenses are translated at the average rates of exchange prevailing during the period. The related
translation adjustments are recorded as cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments in accumulated
other comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Earnings per Share. Basic earnings per share are computed based upon the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding and diluted earnings per share are computed based upon the weighted average
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

number of common shares outstanding and dilutive common share equivalents (consisting of incentive stock
options and non-qualified stock options) outstanding during the periods using the treasury stock method.
Following is a reconciliation of the shares used to compute basic and diluted earnings per share:

Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Weighted average number of shares outstanding used to '
compute basic earnings per share.................. 21,907,000 22,193,000 22,645,000
Dilutive effect of stock options. .. ................... 465,000 887,000 392,000
Number of shares used to compute diluted earnings per
Share ... 22,372,000 23,080,000 23,037,000

Anti-dilutive options excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share totaled 865,838 shares,
125,164 shares and 600,794 shares for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation. In October 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” The
Company has adopted only the disclosure portion of the statement (see Note §8).

Use of FEstimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risks
consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, and trade receivables. The Company
places its cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities with quality credit institutions, and limits the
amount of credit exposure with any one institution. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts
receivable are limited because of the large number of geographically dispersed customers, thus spreading the
trade credit risk. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations to identify risks and maintains an
allowance to address these risks.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The recorded values of cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate their fair value based on
their short-term nature. The fair values of marketable securities were estimated using quoted market prices.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” is effective for all fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS No. 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and
for hedging activities. Under SFAS No. 133, certain contracts that were not formerly considered derivatives
may now meet the definition of a derivative. The Company has adopted SFAS No. 133 effective January 1,
2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a significant impact on the financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows of the Company.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year consolidated financial
statements to conform with the current year consolidated financial statement presentation.
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Office Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements.

Office furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements at December 31, 2000 and 2001, consisted of the
following:

2000 2001

Furniture and fiXtures ...t $ 1,296,000 $ 1,436,000
Computers and related equipment . ........... . ........ ... ... 3,158,000 3,346,000
Machinery and equipment ........... ... . e 1,192,000 1,369,000
Leasehold improvements........... ... .. i 1,055,000 1,302,000
COnStruction M PrOZIESS . . . v\ttt ettt iiieee e eaecns 26,000 37,000
6,727,000 7,490,000

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization................. (3,389,000)  (4,686,000)
Total ... $ 3,338,000 $ 2,804,000

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001 was
$1,035,000, $1,254,000 and $1,384,000, respectively.

3. Officer Loans Receivable.

In June 1999, the Company loaned an officer of the Company $400,000, bearing interest at 4.92%,
compounded semi-annually. Principal and interest were payable on December 10, 2000. The note was paid in
full on December 7, 2000.

4. Goodwill.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired {see
Note 11). It is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. Goodwill is stated net of accumulated
amortization of $486,000 at December 31, 2000 and $637,000 at December 31, 2001. Amortization expense
was $108,000, $134,000 and $151,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 141 (SFAS No. 141),
“Business Combinations,” and Statement No. 142 (SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 as of July 1, 200! did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements. SFAS No. 142 includes requirements to test goodwill and indefinite lived intangible
assets for impairment rather than amortize them. The Company has adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1,
2002. The Company is currently evaluating the impairment provisions of SFAS No. 142 and has not
determined the impact, if any, they will have on its financial statements.

5. 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan, Deferred Compensation Plan and Change in Control Severance Plan.

Effective January 1, 1995, the Company adopted the On Assignment, Inc. 401 (k) Retirement Savings
Plan under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code, under which eligible employees may elect to have a
portion of their salary deferred and contributed to the plan. The amount of salary deferred is not subject to
Federal and State income tax at the time of deferral. The Plan covers all eligible employees and provides for
matching or discretionary contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company made no
matching or discretionary contributions to the plan during the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001.

Effective January 1, 1998, the Company implemented the On Assignment, Inc. Deferred Compensation
Plan. The plan permits a select group of management or highly compensated employees or directors to
annually elect to defer up to 100 percent of their base salary, annual bonus, stock option gain or fees on a pre-
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

tax basis, and earn tax-deferred interest on these amounts. Distributions from the plan are made at retirement,
death or termination of employment, in a lump sum, or over five, ten or fifteen years. At December 31, 2000
and 2001, the liability under the plan was approximately $1,423,000 and $1,736,000, respectively. A life
insurance policy is maintained on the participants relating to the plan, whereby the Company is the sole owner
and beneficiary of such insurance. The cash surrender value of this life insurance policy, which is reflected in
other assets, was approximately $1,201,000 and $1,586,000 at December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

During 1999, a participant in the Deferred Compensation Plan performed a stock-for-stock exercise
resulting in a gain to the participant of approximately $294,000. A stock certificate for 19,764 shares was
issued into a rabbi trust in the Company’s name. The employer stock held by the rabbi trust has been classified
in equity in the same manner as treasury stock, with a reduction in shares outstanding and a corresponding
reduction to Paid-in Capital. The corresponding deferred compensation liability is also shown as a separate
component in equity. There is no effect on the Consolidated Statements of Income as a result of this
transaction.

On February 12, 1998, the Company adopted the On Assignment, Inc. Change in Control Severance
Plan (“the Plan™) to provide severance benefits for officers and other eligible employees who are terminated
following an acquisition of the Company. Under the Plan, if an eligible employee is involuntarily terminated
within 18 months of a change in control, as defined in the Plan, then the employee will be entitled to salary
plus target bonus payable in a lump sum. The amounts payable would range from one month to 18 months of
salary and target bonus depending on the employee’s length of service and position with the Company.

6. Commitments and Centingencies.

The Company leases its facilities and certain office equipment under operating leases which expire at
various dates through 2007. Certain leases contain rent escalations and/or renewal options.

The following is a summary of future minimum lease payments by year:

Operating
_ leases
2002 . $3,069,000
2003 . .. F 2,520,000
2004 . . 1,483,000
20005 . 929,000
2000 . . e 308,000
Therealter . oo 325,000
Total Minimum Lease Payments . .........ovuiiiinee i, $8,634,000

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001 was $2,342,000, $2,995,000 and
$3,895,000, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising
in the ordinary course of business. However, based on the facts currently available, management believes that
the disposition of matters that are pending or asserted will not have a materially adverse effect on the financial
position of the Company.

The Company is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation expense. In connection with this
program, the Company pays a base premium plus actual losses incurred up to certain levels, and is insured for
losses greater than certain levels per occurrence and in the aggregate. The Company is required to maintain
cash deposits for the payment of losses and as collateral amounting to $237,000 and $77,000 at December 31,
2000 and 2001, respectively. These workers’ compensation deposits are restricted as to withdrawal and have
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therefore been classified as non-current assets in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. These funds
are invested primarily in three-month treasury bills and are recorded at amortized cost which approximated
market at December 31, 2000 and 2001. The self-insurance claim liability is determined based on claims filed
and claims incurred but not yet reported. The Company accounts for claims incurred but not yet reported
based on actuarial reports prepared by an independent third party who reviews historical experience and
current trends of industry data. Changes in estimates and differences in estimates and actual payments for
claims are recognized in the period which the estimates changed or payments were made. The self-insurance
claim liability amounted to approximately $1,753,000 and $2,662,000 at December 31, 2000 and 2001,
respectively.

7. Income Taxes.

Income before provision for income taxes consists of the following:
Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
United States ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiine $23,429,000  $30,770,000  $25,699,000
Foreign ... ... (401,000) (131,000) 1,387,000

$23,028,000  $30,639,000  $27,086,000

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:
Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Current:
Federal ... $8,263,000 $10,385,000 $ 8,726,000
State . i e 1,155,000 1,449,000 1,160,000
Foreign ... i (67,000) (74,000) 575,000
9,351,000 11,760,000 10,461,000
Deferred:
Federal ........ .ot (628,000) (439,000) (337,000)
S 71 < (78,000) 69,000 (32,000)
Foreign ....... ... i (79,000) 2,000 (46,000)
(785,000) (368,000) (415,000)
Total oo $8,566,000 $11,392,000 $10,046,000

At December 31, 2001, the Company has accumulated net foreign earnings of $288,000. The Company
_ does not plan to repatriate these earnings, therefore, no U.S. income tax has been provided on the foreign
earnings. If such earnings were distributed, U.S. income taxes would be partially reduced for taxes paid to the
jurisdictions in which the income was earned. Additionally, the Company has not tax effected the cumulative
translation adjustment as there is no intention of repatriating foreign earnings.

Deferred income taxes arise from the recognition of certain assets and liabilities for tax purposes in
periods different from those in which they are recognized in the financial statements. These differences relate
primarily to workers’ compensation, state taxes, bad debt, deferred compensation, and depreciation and
amortization expenses. '

Deferred assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current according to the nature of the
assets or liabilities from which they arose.
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The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

December 31, 2000 December 31, 2001
Federal State Federal State
Deferred tax assets:
Current:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ....... $ 483,000 $ 42,000 $ 504,000 §$ 43,000
Employee related accruals ............ 632,000 56,000 605,000 51,000
State taxes . ...t vt e 507,000 — 410,000 —
Workers’ compensation loss reserve . . . .. 512,000 45,000 917,000 77,000
Other ... 46,000 — 52,000 —
Total current deferred tax assets ........... 2,180,000 143,000 2,488,000 171,000
Non-current:
Depreciation and amortization expense . . 239,000 21,000 228,000 19,000
Other ... i 103,000 12,000 180,000 27,000
Total non-current deferred tax assets........ 342,000 33,000 408,000 46,000
Total deferred tax assets .................. $2,522,000 $L76,000 $2,896,000  $217,000

Foreign deferred tax assets and liabilities were not material as of December 31, 2000 and 2001.

The net operating loss carryforwards included in other non-current deferred tax assets at December 31,
2000 and 2001, were acquired through the 1994 acquisition of 1st Choice Personnel, Inc. These carryforwards,
which total $54,000 at December 31, 2001, are available to offset future taxable income, subject to annual
limitations, through the year 2009.

The reconciliation between the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35%
in 1999, 2000 and 2001 to income before income taxes and the actual income taxes is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Income tax expenses at the statutory rate........... $8,060,000  $10,724,000 $ 9,480,000
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 1,119,000 1,449,000 1,235,000
Tax-free interest and other ....................... (613,000) {781,000) (669,000)
Total ... e $8,566,000  $11,392,000 $10,046,000

The Company receives a tax deduction as the result of disqualifying dispositions made by directors,
officers and employees. A disqualifying disposition occurs when stock acquired through the exercise of
incentive stock options or the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is disposed of prior to the required holding
period or upon exercise of a non-qualified stock option. At December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, net income
taxes payable and additional paid-in capital include tax benefits amounting to $517,000, $3,751,000 and
$2,572,000, respectively, resulting from disqualifying dispositions by directors, officers and employees.

8. Stock Option Plzn and Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Under its Stock Option Plan, the Company may grant employees, contractors, and non-employee
members of the Board of Directors incentive or non-qualified stock options to purchase shares of its common
stock. On June 13, 2000, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the Stock Option Plan that
increased the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the Stock Option Plan from
8,000,000 shares to 10,000,000 shares. Optionees, option prices, option amounts, grant dates and vesting are
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established by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The option prices may not be less than
85% of the fair market value of the stock at the time the option is granted. Stock options granted to date

generally become exercisable over a pro rata period of four years and have a maximum term of ten years
measured from the grant date.

The following summarizes stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001:
Incentive Non-Qualified Weighted Average

Stock Stock Exercise Price
Options Options Per Share
Outstanding at January 1, 1999 .................. 1,598,744 914,318 $10.67
Granted. ........ .. 837,822 337,078 $13.43
Exercised ....... ... i (407,360) (29,526) $ 4.07
Canceled . . ..o oot (409,584)  (20,894) $13.99
Outstanding at December 31, 1999 ............... 1,619,622 1,200,976 $12.32
Granted ... ... . 539,906 199,294 $25.11
Exercised ....... ... . 0 (402,778) (390,483) $10.79
Canceled . ... .. . (374,096) (22,348) $15.99
Outstanding at December 31,2000 ............... 1,382,654 987,439 $16.19
Granted .. ... ... 623,783 404,467 $19.21
Exercised ..............c........ e (343,977) (292,374) $11.23
Canceled ........ ... ... i (510,970) (175,588) $20.20
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 ............... 1,151,490 923,944 M
The following summarizes pricing and term information for options outstanding as of December 31, 2001:
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Weighted Weighted
Qutstanding at Average Average Exercisable at Average
Range of December 31, Remaining Exercise December 31, . Exercise
Exercise Prices 2001 Contractual Life Price 2001 Price
$ 2.50 to $13.6875 471,385 7.1 years $12.28 334,616 $11.85
14.00 to 16.219 363,582 7.3 years 15.82 236,023 15.92
16.39 to 17.97 514,082 9.4 years 17.51 39,019 17.19
18.00 to 23.46 352,728 9.6 years 21.11 63,954 22.11
23,75 to  33.00 373,657 8.8 years 2546 135,689 25.84
$ 2.50 to $33.00 2,075,434 8.4 years $18.07 809,301 $16.45

Options exercisable at December 31, 1999 and 2000 were 599,724 and 956,678, with a weighted average
exercise price of $12.32 and $16.19, respectively.

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan allows eligible employees to purchase common stock of the
Company, through payroll deductions, at 85% of the lower of the market price on the first day or the last day
of the semi-annual purchase period. Eligible employees may contribute up to 10% of their base earnings
toward the purchase of the stock. During 1999, 2000 and 200! shares issued under the plan were 19,348,
18,307 and 13,297, respectively.

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in
accounting for its Stock Option Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan and accordingly, no compensation
cost has been recognized for its stock option and purchase plans because options are granted at fair market
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value. The Company has adopted the disclosure only provisions .of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS No. 123). The estimated fair value
of options granted during 1999, 2000 and 2001 pursuant to SFAS No. 123 was approximately $7,693,000,
$9,443,000 and $10,019,000, respectively, and the estimated fair value of stock purchased under the
Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan was approximately $93,000, $94,000 and $112,000, respectively.
Had compensation cost for the Company’s Stock Option Plan and its Employee Stock Purchase Plan been
determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under those plans consistent with the method
of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s pro forma net income would have been $11,993,000, $16,784,000 and
$13,798,000 and pro forma earnings per share would have been $0.54, $0.74 and $0.60 for 1999, 2000 and
2001, respectively. Because the SFAS No. 123 method of accounting has not been applied to options granted
prior to January 1, 1995, the resulting pro forma compensation cost may not be representative of that to be
expected in future years.

The fair value of options granted under the Company’s Stock Option Plan during 1999, 2000 and 2001
was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-
average assumptions used: (i) no dividend yield in 1999, 2000 or 2001, (ii) expected volatility of
approximately 50% in 1999, 54% in 2000 and 55% in 2001, (iii) risk-free interest rate of approximately 5.8% in
1999, 5.9% in 2000 and 4.5% in 2001, and (iv) expected lives of the options of approximately 5 years in 1999,
2000 and 2001. Pro forma compensation cost of shares purchased under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is
measured based on the discount from market value.

9. Business Segments.

Indicated below is the information required to comply with SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segmients
of an Enterprise and Related Information.

The Company has two reportable operating segments: Lab Support and Healthcare Staffing. The Lab
Support segment provides temporary and permanent placement services of laboratory and scientific profes-
sionals to the biotechnology, pharmaceutical, food and beverage, chemical industries. The Healthcare Staffing
segment includes the combined results of Healthcare Financial Staffing, Clinical Lab Staff and Diagnostic
Imaging Staff because they have similar economic characteristics. The Healthcare Staffing segment provides
temporary and permanent placement services of medical billing and collection professionals, and laboratory
and medical staffing personnel to the healthcare industry.

The Company’s management evaluates performance of each segment primarily based on revenues, gross
profit and operating income (before dcquisition costs, interest and income taxes). The accounting policies of
the segments are the same as those described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (see
Note 1). The information in the following table is derived directly from the segments’ internal financial
reporting used for corporate management purposes. Certain corporate expenses are not allocated to and/or
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among the operating segments. The following table represents revenues, gross profit and operating income by

operating segment:

Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Revenues:

Lab Support . ... $119,668,000  $139,986,000 $139,558,000
Healthcare Staffing ....................... 39,805,000 55,094,000 55,062,000
$159,473,000  $195,080,000  $194,620,000

Gross Profit:
LabSupport ... $ 38,866,000 $ 46,021,000 $ 45,575,000
Healthcare Staffing ....................... 12,955,000 17,708,000 17,702,000
‘ $ 51,821,000 § 63,729,000 $ 63,277,000

Operating Income:

LabSupport ... i $ 14,830,000 $ 19,353,000 $ 17,309,000
Healthcare Staffing ....................... 6,563,000 8,844,000 7,202,000
$ 21,393,000 § 28,197,000 $ 24,511,000

The Company does not report total assets by segment. The following table represents identifiable assets

by business segment:

Years Ended December 31,

‘ 1999 2000 2001
Accounts receivable:
LabSupport ... $16,881,000 $19,467,000 $16,125,000
Healthcare Staffing .......................... 7,115,000 9,671,000 8,324,000
$23,996,000 $29,138,000  $24,449,000

The Company operates internationally, with operations in the United States, Canada and Europe. The

following table represents revenues and long lived assets by geographic location:
Years Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
‘Révenues:

Domestic..........ccoviviiiiinnnea.t. $156,686,000 $188,511,000 $181,923,000
Foreign ......... ..., 2,787,000 6,569,000 12,697,000
| $159,473,000  $195,080,000  $194,620,000

Long-lived assets:
DOmeStic . ..o $ 8,540,000 $ 10,414,000 $ 8,530,000
Foreign .......... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 138,000 160,000 398,000
$ 8,678,000 $ 10,574,000 $ 8,928,000

10. Unaudited Quarterly Results.

The following table presents unaudited quarterly financial information for each of the eight quarters
ended December 31, 2001. In the opinion of management, the quarterly information contains all adjustments,
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consisting only of normal recurring accruals, necessary for a fair presentation thereof. The operating results for
any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results for any future period.

Quarter Ended

Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2000 2008 2000 2000 2001 2001 2001 2001

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues.................. $44,345 $47.817 $51,109 $51,808  $51,181 $49,674  $46,943  $46,822
Cost of services. .......... 29,899 32,163 34,328 34,961 34,454 33,609 31,803 31,477
Gross profit ................ 14,446 15,654 16,781 16,347 16,727 16,065 15,140 15,345
Selling, general and
administrative expenses . . 8,190 9,035 9,347 8,959 9,919 9,613 9,371 9,863
Operating income . .......... 6,256 6,619 7,434 7,888 6,808 6,452 5,769 5,482
Interest income........... 446 571 679 746 807 692 648 428
Income before income taxes .. 6,702 7,190 8,113 8,634 7,615 7,144 6,417 5,910
Provision for income taxes 2,496 2,666 3,018 3,212 2,789 2,641 2,358 2,258
Netincome ................ $ 4206 $ 4,524 $ 5095 $ 5422 $ 482 $ 4503 $ 4,059 § 3,652
Basic earnings per share ... .. $ 019 $ 020 $ 023 §$ 024 $ 021 $ 020 $ 018 § 0.6

Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding 21,846 22,177 22,312 22,434 22,620 22,794 22,683 22,482

Diluted earnings per share.... § 019 § 020 § 022 §$§ 023 § 021 $ 019 § 0.18 § 0.16

Weighted average number of
common and common
equivalent shares
outstanding .............. 22,476 23,182 23,233 23,217 23,249 23,154 22,960 22,780

11. Acquisitions.

On July 20, 1998, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of LabStaffers, Inc., a provider of
temporary science and medical laboratory professionals through its branches in Greensboro and Charlotte,
N.C. The LabStaffers, Inc. offices and operations acquired have been added to the Company’s Lab Support
division. This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Consideration for
the purchase consisted of $808,000 in cash paid on the purchase date. The excess of the purchase price over
the fair value of the net assets acquired has been allocated to goodwill. In addition, in July 1999 and July 2000
the Company paid an additional $360,000 in cash in accordance with the agreement, bringing the total
consideration for the purchase to $1,528,000 at December 31, 2001. This contingent consideration has been
added to goodwill in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. No additional contingent consideration
is required in accordance with the agreement.

12. Subsequent Events.

On March 27, 2002, the Company entered into a Merger Agreement pursuant to which Health Personnel
Options Corporation (“HPO”), an Chio corporation, will be merged into a newly organized wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Assuming all conditions to closing the transaction are met, the merger will be
completed during April, 2002, Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, total consideration of $150 million
is to be paid 50% in cash, net of outstanding debt, and 50% through the issuance of approximately 3,900,000
shares of the Company’s common stock. The number of shares to be issued was calculated based upon the
ten-day trailing average closing price prior to the signing of the Merger Agreement. HPO provides temporary
professionals in the nursing and allied healthcare industries. When the merger is completed, the operations of
HPO will be grouped in the Company’s Healthcare Staffing segment.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART II

Item 10. Executive Officers and Directors of the Registrant

Information regarding the Company’s directors will be set forth under the caption “Proposal One —
Election of Directors” in the Company’s proxy statement for use in connection with its Annual Meeting of
Stockholders scheduled to be held on June 18, 2002 (the “2002 Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated herein
by reference. The 2002 Proxy Statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year.

Information regarding the Company’s executive officers is set forth in Part I of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act will be set forth under the
caption “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934” in the Company’s 2002
Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding remuneration of the Company’s directors and officers will be set forth under the
captions “Proposal One — Election of Directors,” and “Executive Compensation and Related Information” in
the Company’s 2002 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be set forth
under the captions “General Information for Stockholders — Record Date, Voting and Share Ownership” in
the Company’s 2002 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions will be set forth under the caption
“Executive Compensation and Related Information — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in
the Company’s 2002 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year
and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) List of documents filed as part of this report

Page

1. Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Auditors. . ... i 17

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2000 and 2001 ... ... ..... ... ... ....... 18

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended

December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001 . . ... o e 19

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 1999,

2000 and 200 ...t e e e 20

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and

2000 L e 21

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ................ ... .ciiuieren.... S 22
2.  Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ....... ... i, 37

Schedules other than those referred to above have been omitted because they are not applicable or not
required under the instructions contained in Regulation S-X or because the information is included
elsewhere in the financial statements or notes thereto.

{(b) Reports on Form 8-K
No reports on Form 8-K were filed during the three months ended December 31, 2001.
{¢) Exhibits

Number Footnote Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger By and Among On Assignment, Inc., On Assignment
Acquisition Corp., Health Personnel Options Corporation and certain stockholders of
Health Personnel Options Corporation, dated March 27, 2002.

3.1 (1) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company.
32 (2) Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company.

4.2 3) Specimen Common Stock Certificate.

10.1 (3) Form of Indemnification Agreement.

10.2 (4) Restated 1987 Stock Option Plan, as amended.

10.3 (5) 1992 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.9 6) Office lease dated December 7, 1993, by and between the Company and Malibu
Canyon Office Partners, LP.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
24.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
25.1 Power of Attorney.

(1) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 35, 2000.

(2) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 4, 1998.

(3) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 33-50646) declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 21,
1992.
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{4) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29, 2001.

(5) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 33-57078) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 19, 1993.

(6) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 24, 1994,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,
in Calabasas, California on this 29th day of March, 2002. .

ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.

(=)

./ Joseph Peterson, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYIN G ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
beginning of costs and other end of
Description period expenses accounts Deductions period
Year ended December 31, 1999
Allowance for doubtful accounts .. .... $1,009,000 738,000 —_ (531,000) $1,216,000
Accrued workers’ compensation. ... ... 1,437,000 641,000 - (631,000) 1,447,000
Year ended December 31, 2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts ...... $1,216,000 699,000 — (455,000) $1,460,000
Accrued workers’ compensation. . .. ... 1,447,000 1,078,000 —_ (772,000) 1,753,000
Year ended December 31, 2001
Allowance for doubtful accounts ... .. . $1,460,000 293,000 — (86,000) $1,667,000
Accrued workers’ compensation. . ... .. 1,753,000 1,654,000 — (745,000) 2,662,000
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At G
I

On Assignment, Inc. is the nation’s premier science
and healthcare temporary staffing company. Run by
industry professionals for industry professionals, it is
the only company to make Forbes magazine’s list
of the “200 Best Small Companies in America” for
nine consecutive years, With more than 100 offices
throughout the United States, Canada, and
Europe, it is our goal to meet the sophisticated and
changing needs of our science and healthcare
professionals’ quest for meaningful work while fuffiling

our clients’ specialized staffing requirements.

Healthcare Financial Staff

provides skilled healthcare financial professionals
such as billers, coders, admitters, collectors, office
managers, case managers, claims examiners, and
medical secretaries to hospitals, physician offices,

clinics, HMOs, and central billing offices.
Diagnostic Imaging Staff

provides x-ray technicians, CT & MRI technologists,
ultrasound & mammography technologists, and nuclear
medicine technologists to hospitals, physician offices,

clinics, imaging centers, and university research centers.

Clinical Lab Staff

provides phlebotomists, certified medical assistants,
medical technologists, medical lab technicians,
cytotechnologists, and histotechnologists to hospitals,
physician offices, clinics, reference laboratories, and

university research centers.
Lab Support

provides skilled chemists, biologists, biochemists,
microbiologists, laboratory technicians and assistants,
health & safety specialists, research associates, and
other scientists with temporary positions in pharma-
ceutical, biotech, food and beverage, materials sci-

ence, and environmental laboratories.

Alexandria, VA
Ann Arbor, Ml
Atlanta, GA
Baltimore, MD
Boston, MA
Buffalo, NY
Charlotte, NC
Cheshire, CT
Chicago, IL
Cincinnati, OH
Cleveland, OH
Columbus, OH
Costa Mesa, CA
Dallas, TX
Dayton, OH
Denver, CO

Des Moines, IA
Detroit, Ml
Escondido, CA
Ft. Lauderdale, FL
Ft. Worth, TX
Grand Rapids, Ml
Greensboro, NC
Harrisburg, PA
Houston, TX
Indianapolis, IN
Jacksonville, FL
Kansas City, KS
Las Vegas, NV
Los Angeles, CA
Louisville, KY
Madison, WI
Memphis, TN
Miami, FL
Milwaukee, Wi
Minneapolis, MN
New Orleans, LA
Oakland, CA
Okiahoma City, OK
Pasadena, CA
Philadelphia, PA
Phoenix, AZ
Piscataway, NJ
Pittsburgh, PA
Pleasanton, CA
Portland, OR
Princeton, NJ
Raleigh-Durham, NC
Richmond, VA
Riverside, CA
Sacramento, CA
Salt Lake City, UT
San Antonio, TX
San Bernardino, CA
San Diego, CA
San Francisco, CA
San Jose, CA
Savannah, GA
Seattle, WA

St. Louis, MO
Tampa, FL

Tulsa, OK
Washington, DC
White Plains, NY
Worcester, MA

Edmonton, AB
Montreal, QC
Toronto, ON
Vancouver, BC

¢

Birmingham
Cambridge
Glasgow
Leeds
London
Manchester
Oxford

Eindhoven
Rotterdam
Utrecht
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